

California Code of Regulations

Title 14. Natural Resources  
Division 7. California Integrated Waste Management Board

*DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR DISCUSSION – Provide the EA with discretion to authorize temporary storage of additional material.*

Agricultural material and green material composting operations are limited to 12,500 cubic yards of off-site- generated green material to be stored on-site at any one time. Some stakeholders have indicated that they are unable to meet seasonal demand for their products as a consequence of the regulatory restrictions on accumulated materials. Staff proposes providing the EA with discretion to authorize an operator to temporarily store additional material if the EA determines it will not adversely affect public health and safety or the environment.

**Proposed language:**

**CHAPTER 3.1. COMPOSTABLE MATERIALS HANDLING OPERATIONS AND FACILITIES  
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS**

**§ 17856. Agricultural Material Composting Operations.**

(a) ~~All Agricultural material composting operations and chipping and grinding operations shall comply with the Enforcement Agency Notification requirements set forth in Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Division 7, Chapter 5.0, Article 3.0 (commencing with section 18100), except as otherwise provided by this Chapter. Agricultural Compostable Materials Handling Operations shall only be subject to the requirements of section 17863.4 if the EA makes a written determination that the operation has violated the requirements for odor impacts of section 17867 and the requirements of this Chapter.~~

(b) ~~Compost produced by an Agricultural material composting operations are subject to the requirements of section 17863.4 only if the EA determines that the operation ~~or~~ has caused odor impacts in violation of section 17867, subdivision (2) and has notified the operator in writing of the violation. a chipping and grinding operation which uses only agricultural material may be sold or given away in unrestricted quantities. These operations shall be inspected by the EA at least once annually.~~

(c) ~~If their feedstock is limited to agricultural material, agricultural material composting operations may sell or give away any or all compost they produce. These operations shall be inspected by the EA at least once each calendar year at a time. Compost produced by an agricultural material composting operation which uses agricultural material and/or green material, as specified in section 17852(a)(21), may be sold or given away in accordance with the following restrictions:~~

~~(1) Those sites that do not sell or give away more than 1,000 cubic yards of material per year shall be inspected by the EA at least once annually when actively composting. If more than 12,500 cubic yards of green material, including feedstock, compost, or chipped and ground material, is to be handled on-site of productive farmland as defined in Government Code section 51201, the operator shall give advance notice to the EA. The EA shall only prohibit the on-site storage of additional materials, or impose a greater inspection frequency, if the EA makes a written finding that it will pose an additional risk to public health and safety and the environment. The EA shall forward a copy of the request and approval to the Board.~~

~~(2) Those operations that sell or give away more than 1,000 cubic yards of material per year, shall have no more than 12,500 cubic yards of green material, including feedstock, compost, or chipped and ground material, on site at any one time and shall be inspected by the EA once every three (3) months.~~

~~(3) These sites shall record the quantity received of green material.~~

(d) Agricultural material composting operations whose feedstock is both green material and agricultural material are subject to the following requirements:

(1) Small Producers located on Agricultural Land:

(A) Operations located on land that is zoned for agricultural uses that sell or give away less than 1,000 cubic yards of compost per year shall be inspected by the EA at least once each calendar year at a time when compostable material on the site is active compost.

(B) The operator may request in writing that the EA authorize it to handle more than 12,500 cubic yards of material used for the production of compost on the site. The EA shall respond in writing to the operator's request within 14 days of receipt. The EA may authorize such an increase for a limited term it determines is appropriate. The EA may not prohibit the on-site handling of materials in excess of 12,500 cubic yards unless it makes a written finding that handling the excess material may pose a risk to public health and safety or the environment. The EA shall promptly forward a copy of the request and its decision to CalRecycle.

(2) Other Producers:

(A) Operations located on land that is not zoned for agricultural uses and operations that sell or give away 1,000 cubic yards or more of compost per year shall be inspected by the EA at least once every three (3) months unless the EA approves, with CalRecycle concurrence, an operator request for reduced inspection frequency. The EA may approve a reduced inspection frequency only if it will not pose an additional risk to public health and safety or the environment but in no case shall the frequency be less than once per calendar year.

(B) Requests for Increased Storage and Handling:

1. The operator may request in writing that the EA authorize it to temporarily handle more than 12,500 cubic yards of material used for the production of compost on the site. The EA shall respond in writing to the operator's request within 14 days of receipt. The EA may authorize such an increase if the EA determines it will not adversely affect public health and safety or the environment. The EA may impose any reasonable conditions on its approval of a temporary increase in site capacity. The initial term for a temporary increase in site capacity may not exceed 30 days. The EA may grant one or more additional 30-day extensions of storage time not exceeding a total of 90 days per calendar year.

2. With its request for an increase in site capacity, the operator shall submit the following to the EA:

a. A description of the storage capacity at the operation and the maximum and average lengths of time the compostable material will be stored.

b. A schematic drawing showing the general layout of the operation and the location(s) where all materials at the site are stored with specific identification of the proposed location of the excess material.

c. A description of any additional fire prevention, protection and control measures needed to minimize the risk of fire from the temporary increase in site capacity and to control and extinguish any such fires, which measures shall be approved by the local fire authority.

d. Where applicable, any revisions to the odor impact minimization plan necessary to address the storage of the additional material or a statement, with supporting information, that no revisions are necessary.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 40502, 43020 and 43021, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections 43020 and 43021, Public Resources Code.

**§ 17857.1. Green Material Composting Operations and Facilities.**

(a) A green material composting operation ~~that has up to~~ may have no more than 12,500 cubic yards of feedstock, compost, ~~or and~~ chipped and ground material on-site at any one time. Green material composting operations shall comply with the EA Notification requirements set forth in Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Division 7, Chapter 5.0, Article 3.0 (commencing with section 18100)- and with the applicable requirements specified in this Chapter.

(1) These operations shall be inspected by the EA at least once every three (3) months unless the EA approves, with CalRecycle concurrence, an operator request for reduced inspection frequency. The EA may approve a reduced inspection frequency only if it will not pose an additional risk to public health and safety or the environment but in no case shall the frequency be less than once per calendar year.

(2) The operator may request in writing that the EA authorize it to temporarily handle more than 12,500 cubic yards of feedstock, compost, and chipped and ground material on the site. The EA shall respond in writing to the operator's request within 14 days of receipt. The EA may authorize such an increase if the EA determines it will not adversely affect public health and safety or the environment. The EA may impose any reasonable conditions on its approval of a temporary increase in site capacity. The initial term for a temporary increase in site capacity may not exceed 30 days. The EA may grant one or more additional 30-day extensions of storage time not exceeding a total of 90 days per calendar year.

(A) With its request for an increase in site capacity, the operator shall submit the following to the EA:

1. A description of the storage capacity at the operation and the maximum and average lengths of time the compostable material will be stored.

2. A schematic drawing showing the general layout of the operation and the location(s) where all materials at the site are stored with specific identification of the proposed location of the excess material.

3. A description of any additional fire prevention, protection and control measures needed to minimize the risk of fire from the temporary increase in site capacity and to control and extinguish any such fires, which measures shall be approved by the local fire authority.

4. Where applicable, any revisions to the odor impact minimization plan necessary to address the storage of the additional material or a statement, with supporting information, that no revisions are necessary.

~~(b) A green material composting operation that has up to 12,500 cubic yards of feedstock, compost, or chipped and ground material on-site at any one time shall be inspected by the EA at least once every three (3) months, unless an operator request for a reduced inspection frequency of no less than annually is approved by the EA. The EA shall only approve a lesser inspection frequency, if the EA finds that it will not pose an additional risk to public health and safety and the environment. The EA shall forward a copy of the request and approval to the Board.~~

~~(e)~~(b) A site that handles green material composting facility that has more than 12,500 cubic yards of feedstock, compost, or and chipped and ground material on-site at any ~~one~~ time is a green material composting facility, excepting green material composting operations which the EA has authorized to temporarily exceed 12,500 cubic yards pursuant to subdivision (a)(2) above. Green material composting facilities shall obtain a Compostable Materials Handling Facility Permit pursuant to the requirements of Title 27, California Code of Regulations, Division 2, Subdivision 1, Chapter 4, Subchapter 1 and Subchapter 3, Articles 1,2,3, and 3.1 (commencing with section 21450) prior to commencing operations. Green material composting facilities shall comply with the applicable requirements specified in this Chapter 3.1.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 40502, 43020 and 43021, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections 43020 and 43021, Public Resources Code.

**§ 17862.1. Chipping and Grinding Operations and Facilities.**

(a) A chipping and grinding operation that receives up to 200 tons per day of material that may be handled by a green material composting operation shall comply with the EA Notification requirements set forth in Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Division 7, Chapter 5.0, Article 3.0 (commencing with section 18100), ~~except as otherwise provided by~~ and the applicable requirements specified in this Chapter.

(1) Chipping and grinding operations shall be inspected by the EA at least once every three (3) months unless the EA approves, with CalRecycle concurrence, an operator request for reduced inspection frequency. The EA may approve a reduced inspection frequency only if it will not pose an additional risk to public health and safety or the environment but in no case shall the frequency be less than once per calendar year.

(b) A chipping and grinding facility that receives more than 200 tons per day ~~but not more than~~ ~~and up to~~ 500 tons per day of material that may be handled by a green material composting operation shall obtain a Registration Permit pursuant to the requirements of Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Division 7, Chapter 5.0, Article 3.0, prior to commencing operations and shall comply with the applicable requirements of this Chapter.

(c) A chipping and grinding facility that receives more than 500 tons per day of material that may be handled by a green material composting operation shall obtain a Compostable Materials Handling Facility Permit pursuant to the requirements of Title 27, California Code of Regulations, Division 2, Subdivision 1, Chapter 4, Subchapter 1 and Subchapter 3, Articles 1,2,3, and 3.1 (commencing with section 21450) prior to commencing operations and shall comply with the applicable requirements of this Chapter.

(d) A chipping and grinding operation or facility shall not be subject to the provisions of sections 17868.1 through 17868.3 of this Chapter.

(e) If a chipping and grinding operation or facility exceeds the contamination limits specified in section 17852 (a)(21), it shall be regulated as set forth in the Transfer/Processing Regulatory requirements (commencing at section 17400).

(f) If a chipping and grinding operation or facility stores material for a longer period of time than is allowed by section 17852 (a)(10)(A)(2), ~~then the site it~~ shall be regulated as a green material handling operation or facility, as set forth in this Chapter.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 40502, 43020 and 43021, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections 43020 and 43021, Public Resources Code.